
          Planning & Community Dev.   
                     315 Kennel Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                         Molalla, Oregon 97038 
                                       Phone: (503) 759-0205 

                                                                                          Co             communityplanner@cityofmolalla.com 
 

City of Molalla ◼ Community Planning & Development  ◼  315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038  ◼  (503) 759-0205 
 

Chairwoman Rae Lynn Botsford | Commissioner Doug Eaglebear | Commissioner Jennifer Satter  
Commissioner Connie Farrens | Commissioner Jacob Giberson | Commissioner Rick Deaton  

 

 
 

AGENDA 
Molalla Planning Commission 

6:30 PM, January 5, 2022 
 

Meeting Location: Molalla Civic Center 
315 Kennel Avenue.  
Molalla, OR  97038 

 
The Planning Commission Meeting will begin at 6:30pm.  The Planning Commission has adopted Public 
Participation Rules. Copies of these rules and public comment cards are available at the entry desk. 
Public comment cards must be turned in prior to the start of the Commission meeting.  The City will 
endeavor to provide a qualified bilingual interpreter, at no cost, if requested at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. To obtain services call the City Recorder at (503) 829-6855. 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
 

II. FLAG SALUTE AND ROLL CALL 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT – Limited to 3 minutes per person 
 

IV. MINUTES: 
 

• December 1, 2021, Planning Commission Meeting – due to illness on 
staff, minutes for the December 1, 2021 meeting have not yet been 
prepared for approval and will be submitted for the February 2, 2022 
meeting.  

 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING: 
 

• DCA14-2021 – Annexation of S Lowe Properties, 13350, 13434, and 
13500 S Lowe RD.  

 
 
    VI.         REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• Planners Report 

• Directors Report 
 
    VII.        ADJOURNMENT 

1



 

 

City of Molalla 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

 
 

 Staff Report for DCA14-2021/ORD2022-01  
 

Subject: DCA14-2021/ORD2022-01 Annexation and Zone Change of three properties on the 
southern frontage of S Lowe RD in Molalla, east of S Molalla Forest RD and Ona WY. The 
properties are addressed at 13350 S Lowe RD (parcel 52E08C 03500), 13434 S Lowe RD (parcel 
52E08C 03600), and 13500 S Lowe RD (parcel 52E08C 03700), and together comprise 16.50 
acres.   

 

Recommended Action & Motion(s):   
Recommend adoption of DCA14-2021/ORD2022-01 to City Council.  
 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:  1/5/22-Planning Commission Recommendation, 1/12/22 City 
Council Public Hearing, 1st reading, and possible 2nd reading/adoption.  
 

Fiscal Impact: Annexation of land into the City limits provides proportionate property tax revenues to 
the general fund.   
 

Background: The applicant is proposing to annex three contiguous, single ownership properties, 
containing approximately 16.50 acres, into the Molalla City Limits. All three properties are contiguous to 
the Molalla City limits, and within the Urban Growth Boundary. Consistent with the Molalla 
Comprehensive Plan, the applicant is proposing that the property be re-zoned from Rural Industrial (RI) to 
Heavy Industrial (M2). No new development is proposed in this application.  
 
The subject property is located south of town at the northwest corner of S Molalla Ave and Molalla Forest 
Road. There is no current use on the property, and 2 abandoned mill buildings are currently located on 
the site.  
 
Posted for public review 12/28/21.  

2



 

 

 

Exhibits:  
Exhibit 1 – Warrantee Deeds 
Exhibit 2 – Property Reports 
Exhibit 3 – Current and Proposed Zoning 
Exhibit 4 – Annexation Survey and Legal Description 
Exhibit 5 – Public Utility Feasibility Plan 
Exhibit 6 – Findings of Fact 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2022-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON ANNEXING TAX LOTS 52E08C 
03500, 52E08C 03600, AND 52E08C 03700; A 16.50 ACRE TERRITORY, AND ASSIGNING AN M-

2 (HEAVY INDUSTRIAL) CITY ZONING DESIGNATION TO THE ANNEXED TERRORITY 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Molalla Charter, Chapter X, Section 38 requires petitions to annex 
territory into the city limits to be submitted to the electors of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 222.127 supersedes city charters and ordinances requiring a petition to 
annex territory into the city limits to be submitted to the electors of the city, and requires 
cities to follow a separate framework for annexations under certain circumstances; and   

3



 

 

 
WHEREAS, The circumstances are present in this application that require the City to apply 
ORS 222.127 in lieu of the City Charter annexation of territory; and  
 
WHEREAS, The property owners submitted an application for annexation of TAX LOTS 
52E08C 03500, 52E08C 03600, AND 52E08C 03700; a 16.50 acre territory located along the 
southern frontage of S Lowe RD, east of Molalla Forest RD and Ona WY; and    
 
WHEREAS, the City of Molalla is authorized to annex territory under Oregon Revised Statutes 
(ORS) Chapter 222 and Molalla Municipal Code (MMC) Sections 17-1.2.060, Table 17-
4.1.010, and 17-4.1.050; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Owners submitted a concurrent annexation and zone change application 
proposing an M-2 (Heavy Industrial) city zoning designation as prescribed by the Molalla 
Comprehensive Plan to the Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, public notice of the annexation request and the zone change request was 
separately provided consistent with both MMC Section 17-4.1.050.C and ORS 227.186; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Molalla City Council conducted a legislative public hearing on January 12, 
2022, where Council heard and considered testimony and evidence presented by the City 
staff, the Applicant, and those appearing at the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, after the conclusion of the public hearing Council determined the annexation is 
consistent with all applicable legal requirements of state law, and City ordinances related to 
annexing property and voted to approve the application; and  
 
WHEREAS, after the conclusion of the public hearing Council determined the zone change is 
consistent with all applicable legal requirements of state law, and City ordinances related to 
annexing property and voted to approve the application.  
  
 

Now, Therefore, the City of Molalla does ordain as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Council approves and endorses the annexation application for the Property 
shown and described in Exhibit 1 through Exhibit 4 (the property). 

 

Section 2. The existing Clackamas County zoning for the Property, Rural Residential Farm 
Forest 5-Acre (RRFF5) is changed to the Heavy Industrial (M-2) City zoning designation in 
accordance with the City of Molalla Comprehensive Plan. 

 

4



 

 

Section 3. The findings related to the annexation and zone change, and supporting 
documentation, attached as Exhibits 1-6, are incorporated herein by reference and adopted. 

 

Section 4. Notice to Utilities. In accordance with ORS 222.005, the City Recorder shall, no 
later than 10 working days after passage of this ordinance of the proposed annexation, 
provide by certified mail to all public utilities operating within the City, each site address to 
be annexed as recorded on county assessment and tax rolls, a legal description and map of 
the proposed boundary change and a copy of the City Council’s ordinance approving the 
annexation. 

 

Section 5. Notice to County. In accordance with ORS 222.010, the City Recorder shall report 
to the Clackamas County Clerk and County Assessor all changes in the boundaries of limits of 
the city. The report shall be filed by the City within 10 days from the effective date of this 
ordinance.  

 

Section 6. Assessor Valuation. In accordance with ORS 222.030 the City Reorder shall request 
that the County Assessor furnish within 20 days of official request, a statement showing for 
the current fiscal year assessed valuation of the Property.   

 

Section 7. Notice to Secretary of State. In accordance with ORS 222.177 the City Recorder 
shall transmit to the secretary of State: 

 

1) A copy of this ordinance proclaiming the annexation, 
2) A copy of the statement of consent for all electors or landowners of the Property 

who consented to the annexation under ORS 222.170 
 

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective 30 days after adoption by the City 
Council and approval by the Mayor.  

 

The first reading of this ordinance was held on January 12, 2022 and was passed by a vote of 
____ Aye and _____ Nay votes.  

 

�       The second reading of this ordinance was held on _________ and was adopted by a vote of 
____Aye and ______ Nay votes; OR 
 

� This ordinance was made available to the public at least 7 days prior to the first reading and 
was adopted at the first reading by unanimous approval of the City Council; the second reading is 
waived.  

5



 

 

 

 

This ordinance is hereby adopted this ____ day of ___________ 2022.  

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

                                                                                      Scott Keyser, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Christie DeSantis, City Recorder 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 – Warrantee Deeds 

6



 

 

 

7



 

 
8



 

 

 

  

9



 

 

EXHIBIT 2 – PROPERTY REPORTS  

 

10



 

 
11



 

 
12



 

 
13



 

 
14



 

 

  

15



 

 

EXHIBIT 3 – Current Zoning (RRFF5) & Proposed Zoning (to M-2 per Comprehensive Plan) Maps 

 

 

  

16



 

 

EXHIBIT 4 - ANNEXATION SURVEY & LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

17



 

 
18



 

 

 

 

 

19



 

 

EXHIBIT 5 – PUBLIC UTILITIES FEASIBILITY PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

20



 

 

EXHIBIT 6 – FINDINGS OF FACT 

Applicable to Annexation Only 
 

Annexation Criteria in Oregon Revised Statute 222.127  
1. This section applies to a city whose laws require a petition proposing annexation of territory 

to be submitted to the electors of the city. 
 

Finding:  Chapter X, Section 38 of the City of Molalla Charter requires a petition proposing 
annexation of territory to be submitted to the electors of the city, thus ORS 222.127 
supersedes the city charter for purposes of annexation.    
 

2. Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance, upon receipt of 
a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by all owners of land in the territory, 
the legislative body of the city shall annex the territory without submitting the proposal to 
the electors of the city if [criterion 2(a)-(d), 3, and 4 below are met]: 

  

 Finding:  The city is in receipt of a petition proposing annexation of the territory described in 
Exhibits 1-6 of Ordinance 2022-01. The petition was filed by each and all of owners of land 
in the described territory.  

 This criterion is met.   

 
a. The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by the city or Metro, 

as defined in ORS 197.015;  
 

Finding:  The subject property is within the current City of Molalla urban growth boundary. 
 
This criterion is met.   
 
b. The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, subject to the 

acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city; 
 

Finding:  The territory in question is anticipated and included in the current City of Molalla 
Comprehensive Plan. Upon annexation the property will be subject to Molalla’s current 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
This criterion is met.  

 
c. At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city limits or is 

separated from the city limits only by a public right of way or a body of water; 
 

Finding:  The northern border of the subject lots are all contiguous to the city limits. 

21



 

 

 
This criterion is met.  

 
d. The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s ordinances. 

 
Finding:  MMC Table 17-3.1.020 makes annexation application approvals subject to public 
facilities requirements in MMC 17-3.6. The application includes a staff approved public 
facilities feasibility plan which is attached to this ordinance as Exhibit 5.   

 
Also see MMC 17-4.6.030 Analysis below regarding amendments to the zoning map.  
 
This criterion is met.  

 
3.    The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional territory described in 

ORS 222.111 (Authority and procedure for annexation) (1) that must be annexed in order to 
locate infrastructure and right of way access for services necessary for development of the 
territory described in subsection (2) of this section at a density equal to the average 
residential density within the annexing city 

 Finding:  No additional territory is required. The territory proposed is sufficient to locate 
infrastructure and right of way access for services necessary to develop.    

 This criterion is not applicable.   

4.    When the legislative body of the city determines that the criteria described in subsection (2) 
of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, the legislative body may declare 
that the territory described in subsections (2) and (3) of this section is annexed to the city by 
an ordinance that contains a description of the territory annexed. [2016 c.51 §2] 

Finding:  The criteria described subjection 2 apply to the territory proposed for annexation, 
however there is no need to annex additional property as described in subsection 3 (see 
findings in subsection 3).  

 

This criterion is not applicable.   

 

 

 

 

 

22

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/222.111
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/222.111


 

 

Applicable to Annexation and Zone Change 
 
MMC 17-4.6.030 Annexation & Zone Change Approval Criteria 
Planning Commission review and recommendation, and City Council approval, of an 
ordinance amending the Zoning Map, Development Code, or Comprehensive Plan shall be 
based on all of the following criteria: 

 
(A) If the proposal involves an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, the amendment 

must be consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals and relevant Oregon 
Administrative Rules; 

 

Finding: Neither the annexation or zone change action amends the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
This criterion is not applicable. 

 

(B) The proposal must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (the Comprehensive 
Plan may be amended concurrently with proposed changes in zoning); 

 

Finding:  The Molalla Comprehensive Plan includes the subject properties with a zoning 
designation of M-2, Heavy Industrial. The annexation deals with land that is part of the 
comprehensive plan and the concurrent zone change proposal is for an M-2 zoning 
designation which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
This criterion is met.  
 

(C) The City Council must find the proposal to be in the public interest with regard to 
community conditions; the proposal either responds to changes in the community, 
or it corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the subject plan or code;  

 
Finding:  The proposed annexation and zone change is intended to prepare the subject 
property for redevelopment of the site at a later time in compliance with the Molalla 
Comprehensive Plan. The Rural Residential Farm-Forest 5-Acre (RRFF5) zoning of this 
territory is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, which designates the property as 
M-2. The zone change will cure that inconsistency. With a growing community, this 
annexation and zone change provide additional industrial employment lands; lands that are 
currently at a deficit within the community and whose development as industrial is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.    
 
This criterion is met.  
 

(D) The amendment must conform to Section 17-4.6.050 Transportation Planning Rule 
Compliance 

23



 

 

 
Finding:  This proposal does not significantly affect the existing or planned transportation 
system because future development will be consistent with the adopted Comprehensive 
Plan and Transportation System Plan which already contemplates the territory at issue in 
this application.  
 
This criterion is met.    
 
 

Applicable to Zone Change Only 
 
MMC 17-1.2.060 Development Code and Zoning Map Implementation 
 

(A)  Zoning of Areas to be Annexed. Concurrent with annexation of land to the City of 
Molalla, the City Council, upon considering the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, shall enact an ordinance applying applicable zoning designation(s) to 
the subject land, pursuant to Chapter 17-4.6. The Comprehensive Plan shall guide 
the designation of zoning for annexed areas.  

 
Finding:  This proposal is a concurrent annexation and zone change proposal. Chapter 17-
4.6 of the comprehensive plan designates the land at issue in this proposal as Heavy 
Industrial (M-2), and the proposal is consistent with that designation.  
 
This criterion is met.  

24



25



26



Should read 13434 S Lowe RD - 

Should read 13434 S Lowe RD - 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124




